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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Burns Union School Building is a two-story Renaissance style 
structure with a full basement and an attic. The Renaissance traits 
in the building are subdued but evident. The building is L-shaped 
with the main entrance in an appendage at the inside corner of the 
"L." The building rests on a foundation of rough-cut limestone which 
extends about six feet above ground level and ends at the sill line 
of the first floor windows. The stone is coursed in horizontal layers 
and gives a massive base to the building. The walls above the foundation 
are constructed of red face brick laid in running bond. The wood 
shingled roof is gabled on one side of the "L" and hipped on the other. 
A broad wooden cornice which is devoid of any ornamentation separates 
the roof from the wall below.

Windows on the first and second floors are grouped in two's and 
three's and are simple rectangles with shallow curved arches for the 
heads. The wood sash windows are double hung with one light per sash. 
Window sills are cut stone and the window heads are shallow brick arches. 
Three dormers appear in the attic, each with a grouping of three windows 
and roofs that are hipped and shingled. A double window occurs in the 
east gable end. The basement windows are small openings in the rough 
stone foundation and have stone sills and lintels. The main entrance is 
accented by a large massive stone arch in which a transom window is 
located. The entrance door is double with a half glass in each.

Most of the changes to the building's exterior have occurred at 
the inside of the "L" near the entrance. To the north of the entrance 
a circular tower is situated. Formerly three stories high with a 
conical roof, it is now terminated by a flat roof at the roof line 
of the main part of the building. The entry way on the other hand, 
according to old photos, was originally only one and a half stories 
in height, but it has been extended to the main roof line. Also, two 
window openings on the east side have been bricked up.

The building is a typical example of the rural Kansas school 
building prevalent at the turn of the century.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

J?he Burns Union School in extreme southeast Marion county was the 
fir^sr: consolidated grade and high school in Kansas. Shortly after the 
turn of the century, several school boards in the Burns vicinity 
decided it had become necessary to consolidate their schools. The 
area's sparse population was causing tax problems, and thus inadequate 
facilities; so in April, 1904, four districts in Marion, Butler and 
Chase counties voted to consolidate. On June 8 an election was held 
to select a school board for the new Union School of Burns, District 
156-65. At an election held July 8 voters approved bonds totaling 
$8,000 for a new building and on September 10 another election deter­ 
mined the exact site for the school.

Classes began September 6, 1904, in the old Burns grade school and 
the former post office building. Students were transported from a 43  
square mile area to Burns via three special-order "buses" made by an 
El Dorado wagon maker, F. J. Newacheck. This is reportedly the first 
use of school "buses" in Kansas. On December 2, 1904, bids were 
received^jfor the new school and local contractors, J. J. ClaylTon and 
S. Bell, were awarded the building contract with their low bid of 
$7,200. C. W. Squires of Emporia was the architect and F. L.^Giddings, 
one of the school board directors, was to supervise the work.

Although most citizens agreed on the consolidation proposal, some 
were dissatisfied with the site chosen; therefore an injunction was 
secured December 21, 1904, to prevent further work on the building 
until all previous actions were proven legal. Rev. George W. Durham, 
who had worked for the school consolidation, went to the state legis­ 
lature in Topeka and was able to get a bill passed which legalized all 
the work of the school board. The building was completed in time for 
the opening of school in the fall of 1905^' The total cost of the 
structure with its furnishings was $9,000. Dedication ceremonies 
December 16, 1905, featured Gov. E. W. Hoch as the guest speaker.

The Burns Union School served as the only district school house 
until ̂ 1921 when a new high school building was completed. The 
original building was still used for classes until a further unifi­ 
cation of school districts in 1965^ terminated its use. In 1965 the 
Burns Community Historical Society, Inc., was organized and received 
title to the old school for use as a museum and other educational 
purposes .

The school has significance to the development of the public 
education system in Kansas since it housed the first consolidated grade 
and high school in the state. __
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